
 

 

Minutes 
2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count Committee 

Education Subcommittee 
Conference Call 

April 1, 2009 
2:00pm-3:00pm 

 
Florida Department of Education 

Turlington building 
325 West Gaines St. 

Room 1706 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

 

Members on the Call: 

5ƛŀƴŜ aŎ/ŀƛƴΣ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ {ǘŀǘŜ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ {ȅǎǘŜƳ ƻŦ CƭƻǊƛŘŀ 

Hue Reynolds, Florida Department of Education 

Candice Lankford, Florida School Board Association CHAIR OF SUBCOMMITTEE 

Curtis Austin, representing Belinda Keiser, Keiser University 

 

2010 Sunshine Census Staff: 

/ƭȅŘŜ 5ƛŀƻΣ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ ƭƛŀƛǎƻƴ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ нлмл /Ŝƴǎǳǎ 

Ayla Anderson, Government Analyst, 2010 Sunshine Census Initiative 

!ƭƭŜŜΩ .ƭŀȅΣ LƴǘŜǊƴΣ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ tƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ .ǳŘƎŜǘ  

 

New Applicants: 

Alexis Tibbetts, Florida Association of District School Superintendents  

Kathy Thrumston, Florida Parent Teacher Association 

 

 

Ayla Anderson took roll and then turned the meeting over to Candace Lankford. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Candace noted budget cuts are affecting the morale and manpower within the 

education field in Florida and might affect the 2010 Sunshine Census effort. She asked 

the members and the new applicants to explain what their plans are for the future.  

 

Diane McCain reported connecting with the 11 state universities she represents, and 

they are prepared to begin the 2010 Sunshine Census outreach. She indicated the 

university newspapers and publications may be helpful in getting the word out.   

 

Candace said there is a training conference in July and it would be a great event to place 

an eye-catching booth on the 2010 Sunshine Census initiative. There are usually 1,200 

people in attendance, including local Parents and Teachers Association leaders present. 

She also mentioned the national PTA convention in June and the state convention in 

November. She said that November event is probably the best opportunity to have a 

presentation from the Census Bureau. The November convention is focused on 

advocacy and policy positions.  

 

Hue Reynolds suggested putting educational materials on the census in ǘƘŜ ŀǘǘŜƴŘŜŜǎΩ 

registration bags at the convention. 

 

Candace said the Florida School Boards Association has a study on federal funds to 

Florida and its link to census participation.  The national average response rate in 2000 

was 67 percent and CƭƻǊƛŘŀΩǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜ ǊŀǘŜ ǿŀǎ со percent.  LŦ CƭƻǊƛŘŀΩǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜ ǊŀǘŜ 

had reached the national average, instead of the proposed more than $13 billion in 

stimulus money, Florida would receive about $16 billion from the federal recovery act. 

She suggested helping people in the education field understand a successful Census in 

the Schools campaign directly connects education funding from the federal government 

and an accurate census count. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Candace and Kathy spoke on the best timeline for public awareness of the 2010 

Sunshine Census during the education conferences/conventions. It was recommended 

that the groundwork be laid at the Florida Parents and Teachers Association training 

session in July.  The November convention would be best for a presenter from the 

Census Bureau to speak. They suggested that the same speaker who addressed the 

Statewide Complete Count Committee meeting in Orlando on February 28 be asked to 

present.   

Candace asked Alexis Tibbetts if she had any ideas.  She mentioned the upcoming event, 

the {ǳǇŜǊƛƴǘŜƴŘŜƴǘǎΩ [ŜŀŘŜǊǎƘƛǇ wƻƭŜ ƛƴ 9ƴƘŀƴŎƛƴƎ {ǘǳŘŜƴǘ !ŎƘƛŜǾŜƳŜƴǘ, on May 13 & 

14 in Tallahassee. She also mentioned the Florida Association of District School 

Superintendents and the Florida School Boards Association Joint Conference on June 10-

12 in Tampa.  Information could be given out at these meetings. The meeting in May 

ƳƛƎƘǘ ōŜ ŀ ƎǊŜŀǘ άƎǊƻǳƴŘǿƻǊƪέ event, in preparation for the implementation of Census 

in the Schools in the 2009-10 curriculum.  

!ƭŜȄƛǎ ǎǘǊŜǎǎŜŘ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇƻǊǘŀƴŎŜ ƻŦ άǎpecific action itemsέ ŀƴŘ ŀ ǘƛƳŜƭƛƴŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 

superintendents and principals to implement Census in the Schools.  These two items 

need to be easily accessible to educators and school administrators on the 2010 

Sunshine Census Web site.  

Candace spoke on the chain of information. She said, ά²Ŝ need to get information to 

the superintendents, and they will get the information to the principalǎΦέ  

Alexis said, άYes, and then the principals take information to their elementary schools, 

middle schools, or ƘƛƎƘ ǎŎƘƻƻƭǎΦέ   

Hue talked about her plans. She said the DOE newsletter has over 10,000 subscribers. 

The community colleges also have a newsletter that could be a way to get the word out.   

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Candace noted that nobody was present on the committee to represent community 

colleges.  

 Hue said that she would be sure to forward the 2010 Sunshine Census information to 

them and get the community colleges involved. 

 

Curtis Austin ǎǇƻƪŜ ƻƴ YŜƛǎŜǊ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅΩǎ ƻǳǘǊŜŀŎƘ possibilities. The state wide 

convention of private universities is in Fort Lauderdale and the national convention is 

also in Broward County. Curtis talked about the Commission on Independent Education, 

and how this is a good medium of exposure, as many of these students represent 

multiple family units.  

 

Candace stressed the importance of decreasing the undercount of the people who live 

on the margins of society. She pointed out the need for migrant outreach, the 

complication of the growing homeless population, and the growing illegal immigrant 

number. The biggest factor in reaching this population of people is confidentiality. She 

stated that in our message, along with increased federal funding being tied to accurately 

ŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ƳƻǊŜ ƻŦ CƭƻǊƛŘŀΩǎ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎΣ we need to stress the confidentiality of the census. 

The fŜŀǊ ƻŦ ōŜƛƴƎ άŘƛǎŎƻǾŜǊŜŘέ by the government is the largest roadblock in achieving 

an accurate census count.  Candace told the story of when President Harry Truman and 

his family temporarily moved out of the White House while it was being remodeled. The 

Secret Service, trying to find a safe neighborhood for the president, asked the Census 

Bureau for information on potential neighbors but the Census Bureau refused 

This is to prove how Census information is confidential.   

 

Candace stressed how important it was to reach the hard-to-count population on the 

ground level.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Alexis suggested making sure the activities and lesson plans are broken up into grade 

categories. Candace indicated that they would be.  She asked Hue if DOE could help 

incorporate these lesson plans into the curriculum.   

  

Hue said Census in the Schools could fit into civics or government classes. She also 

mentioned the possibility of borrowing the lesson plans from the /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ²eb 

site. 

 

Ayla said the Census in the Schools ǇŀƎŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜ Ƙŀǎ materials 

and recommendations for lesson plans. She indicated that the lesson plans are still in 

the 2000 Census format, but should be updated for the 2010 Census very soon.   

 

Candace, Alexis, and Clyde Diao said that lesson plans need to be available by the fall of 

2009.  

 

Ayla brought up the issue of Questionnaire Assistance Centers (QACs). She said talked 

with Martha Brown, partnership specialist with the U.S. Census Bureau, about 

Questionnaire Assistant Centers. Ayla stated that the Census Bureau looks to the state 

ŀƴŘ ƭƻŎŀƭ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ άǎǳŎŎŜǎǎŦǳƭέ ƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ƘƻǳǎŜ v!/ǎΦ !ȅƭŀ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ǎƘŜ ƛǎ 

waiting for Martha Brown to send more information about these centers, but the 

locations need to be easily accessible, indoors, and in well-known areas for the hard -to-

count populations.  

 

Candace addressed the issue of Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) centers and foster 

care centers. These groups of people are exactly the people we are trying to reach.  She 

said we need to refer to Department of Children and Families (DCF) for foster care 

outreach. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Alexis said the district school superintendents can assist in getting census information to 

these groups. 

 

Hue mentioned afterschool programs might be a necessary outlet of census 

information.   

 

Alexis said that students in the Department of Juvenile Justice system are usually not in 

the same county as their parents, making it uncertain which county these children 

would be counted in. 

 

Ayla said she will request information on how to handle this situation. 

 

Candace asked if anyone had any others ideas to add. 

 

Kathy said that the Florida Parent and Teachers Association do have a May meeting for 

training county PTA council presidents and regional representatives.  She will look into 

the possibility of someone from the Census Bureau presenting at the meeting. The 

meeting is the first weekend in May in Orlando.   

 

Ayla indicated she can send materials if a presentation is not given.   

 

Hue said she will figure out how to incorporate the Census in the Schools program into 

the 2009-10 curriculum. She is also looking into communicating with the community 

colleges 

 

Candace asked Clyde if he had anything to add.  

 

Clyde asked participants to let Ayla know of various events such as conventions and 

meetings because these are the best ways to disseminate information.   

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Candace asked if an entertaining video regarding the 2010 Sunshine Census could be 

created to play at the schools. 

 

Clyde indicated promotional materials will be developed. 

 

Curtis suggested that perhaps C{¦Ωǎ CƛƭƳ {ŎƘƻƻƭ ŎƻǳƭŘ ƘŜƭǇΦ 

 

Candace concluded the meeting, reminding everyone to submit information to Ayla. 

Assigned tasks include deadlines for newsletters, materials for upcoming conferences, 

and meeting dates with a description of outreach for each particular event. She said she 

will get in touch with the Florida School Boards Association to link the Census Web site 

to their Web sites. Candace also said that everyone should strive to get information 

about the Census out because of its connection to funding sources.  

 

 

The conference call was over at 3:00 p.m. 

 

Notes taken by AlleeΩ Blay 

     


